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This report presents the results of our review and recommendations regarding Section
(8) 1203 complaints. The objectives of this review were to determine if Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) Restructuring and Reform Act of 1998 (RRA 98)* § 1203
complaints were properly controlled by the IRS and the Treasury Inspector General for
Tax Administration (TIGTA), and if RRA 98 § 1203 complaint information was accurately
reported in the TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress.

In summary, at the time of our review, management could not locate 9 of

173 sampled RRA 98 § 1203 complaints, and management information systems did
not contain current information for 22 of the 173 sampled § 1203 complaints. After we
brought these issues to the attention of IRS and TIGTA Office of Investigations
management, they began taking corrective actions to locate the 9 complaints and
update the computer systems for the 22 complaints. We also identified 28 allegations
outside of our sample where the § 1203 violation code had been removed from the
management information system based on the procedures in effect prior to June 2000.
This resulted in information being inconsistently reported in the TIGTA Semiannual

! pub. L. No. 105-206, 112 Stat. 685 (codified as amended in scattered sections of 2 U.S.C.,5U.S.C,,
5U.S.C. app., 16 U.S.C.,19U.SC,22U.SC., 23U.S.C,26 U.SC., 31 U.SC., 38U.S.C,and 49 U.S.C).



Report to the Congress. Additionally, we identified two required 8§ 1203 items that
were reported incorrectly in a Fiscal Year (FY) 2000 TIGTA Semiannual Report to the
Congress and five items not required to be reported that were overstated in two

FY 2000 semiannual reports.

We recommended that IRS and TIGTA Office of Investigations management locate
and complete necessary actions for the remaining RRA 98 § 1203 complaints that
could not be located, correct the status for the remaining § 1203 complaints where the
information was not current, develop a process to better control 8 1203 complaints,
and ensure that § 1203 complaint information is accurately reported in the TIGTA
Semiannual Report to the Congress.

IRS and TIGTA Office of Investigations management agreed with these
recommendations. Their comments have been incorporated into the report where
appropriate, and the full text of their comments is included as Appendices VI and VII,
respectively.

Copies of this report are also being sent to the IRS managers who are affected by the
report recommendations. Please contact me at (202) 622-6510 if you have questions or
John R. Wright, Acting Assistant Inspector General for Audit (Headquarters Operations
and Exempt Organizations Programs), at (202) 622-8500.
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Executive Summary

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Restructuring and Reform Act of 1998 (RRA 98)*
Section (8) 1203 provides the IRS Commissioner with the authority to terminate the
employment of IRS employees for certain proven violations? committed in connection
with the performance of officia duties. The IRS Commissioner also has the authority
to determine whether mitigating factors exist that weigh against termination. One
example of an RRA 98 § 1203 violation is the willful failure to obtain the required
approval signatures on documents authorizing the seizure of a taxpayer’s property.
Employees may appeal the charges of § 1203 misconduct throughout the
administrative process. However, once al appeals have been exhausted and the IRS
Commissioner makes a final decision that an employee committed one of the § 1203
provisions, the final decision cannot be appealed and the employee is removed from
Federal service, asrequired by the RRA 98. RRA 98 § 1102(a) added Internal
Revenue Code 8§ 7803(d)(1)(E) (Supp. 1V 1998) to require the Treasury Inspector
Genera for Tax Administration (TIGTA) to annually report to the Congress any
termination or mitigation under RRA 98 § 1203.

The objectives of this audit were to determine if RRA 98 § 1203 complaints were
properly controlled by the IRS and the TIGTA and if RRA 98 § 1203 complaint
information was accurately reported in the TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress.

Results

The IRS and the TIGTA Office of Investigations can better ensure that RRA 98 § 1203
complaint information is properly controlled and accurately reported in the TIGTA
Semiannual Report to the Congress. In general, complaints referred from one office to
another within the TIGTA Office of Investigations, or from one office to another within
the IRS, were accounted for and arrived at their final destination. However, at the time of

L pub. L. No. 105-206, 112 Stat. 685 (codified as anended in scattered sections of 2 U.S.C., 5 U.S.C.,
5U.S.C. app., 16 U.S.C,,19U.S.C,22U.SC., 23U.S.C,26 U.SC., 31 U.SC., 38U.S.C,and 49 U.S.C)).

2 See Appendix V for an explanation of the provisions requiring employee removal.
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our review, management could not locate 9 of the 173 complaints® in our sample, and
management information systems did not contain current information for 22 of the 173
complaintsin the sample. We also identified 28 allegations” outside of our sample where
the § 1203 violation code had been removed from the Investigations Management
Information System (IM1S) based on the procedures in effect prior to June 2000. This
resulted in information being inconsistently reported in the TIGTA Semiannual Report to
the Congress. Additionally, we identified two required 8 1203 items that were reported
incorrectly in aFiscal Year (FY) 2000 TIGTA Semiannua Report to the Congress and
five items not required to be reported that were overstated in two FY 2000 semiannual

reports.

Section 1203 Complaints Could Not Always Be L ocated and
Management I nformation Was Not Always Current or Consistent

For 31 of the 173 complaintsin our sample, either the complaints could not be located
from information recorded on the computer databases (9 complaints) or the computer
databases did not contain current information about the complaints (22 complaints). We
projected our findings to the total population of 1,213 open § 1203 complaints on the IRS
and TIGTA databases as of September 30, 2000. According to the projection, casework
may not have been completed for an estimated 38 complaints (+ 1.93 percent) and the
computer databases may not contain current information for another 125 complaints

(£ 4.23 percent).> After we brought these issues to the attention of IRS and TIGTA
Office of Investigations management, they began taking corrective actions to locate the

9 complaints and update the computer systems for the 22 complaints.

Section 1203 Complaint Information Reported in the Semiannual
Reportsto the CongressWas Not Always Accurate and Did Not
Represent All Complaints

We compared § 1203 complaint information reported in the FY 2000 TIGTA

Semiannual Reports to the Congress to § 1203 complaint documentation obtained from
the IRS Commissioner’s Complaint Processing and Analysis Group (CCPAG) and from

3 All § 1203 complaints are entered onto computer inventory systems upon receipt and complaint
documents are either scanned into the inventory system or controlled in apaper file. For nine of the
complaintsin the samples, management could not |ocate the paper complaint file based on the information
recorded on the inventory systems.

* One complaint may contain multiple allegations.

® See Appendix 1V for an explanation of the ranges of complaints (+ 1.93 percent and + 4.23 percent) that
could be affected.
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the TIGTA Complaint Management Division. Two required § 1203 items were reported
incorrectly in one FY 2000 Semiannual Report and five items not required to be reported
were overstated in two FY 2000 Semiannual Reports.

Summary of Recommendations

We recommend that IRS CCPAG and TIGTA Office of Investigations management
locate and compl ete necessary actions for the remaining RRA 98 § 1203 complaints that
could not be located, correct the computer databases for those § 1203 complaints where
the information was not current, ensure compliance with existing procedures for
processing § 1203 complaints, devise a method to ensure § 1203 complaints can be
located in the future, and ensure that 8 1203 complaint information is accurately reported
inthe TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress.

Management’s Response: IRS CCPAG and TIGTA Office of Investigations management
agreed with the observations and recommendations in the report. Both offices took
immediate action to resolve the remaining complaints we could not locate and to correct
the computer databases where the information was not current. In addition, controls will
be strengthened to ensure compliance with existing procedures for processing § 1203
complaints and to ensure that § 1203 complaint information is accurately reported in the
TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress.

IRS and TIGTA management’ s complete responses to the draft report are included as
Appendices VI and VI, respectively.
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The objectives of thisaudit
were to determine if

RRA 98 § 1203 complaints
were properly controlled by
the IRSand the TIGTA and if
§ 1203 complaint information
was accurately reported in the
TIGTA Semiannual Report to
the Congress.

Objectives and Scope

The overall objectives of this audit were to determine if
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Restructuring and
Reform Act of 1998 (RRA 98)* Section (8) 1203
complaints were properly controlled by the IRS and the
Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration
(TIGTA) and if 8§ 1203 complaint information was
accurately reported in the TIGTA Semiannual Report to
the Congress. Audit work was performed in the IRS
Commissioner’s Complaint Processing and Analysis
Group (CCPAG) and the TIGTA Office of
Investigations' Complaint Management Division
(CMD). The audit was conducted between

December 2000 and April 2001 and was performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

To accomplish the objectives, we:

Interviewed IRS CCPAG and TIGTA CMD
personnel to determine how complaints are received,
controlled, tracked, and eventually reported in the
TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress.

Reviewed a statistically valid sample of

173 open § 1203 complaints from the IRS and
the TIGTA Office of Investigations databases as
of September 30, 2000, to determine if the
complaints were properly controlled.

Reviewed documentation from the IRS CCPAG and
the TIGTA CMD to determine the accuracy of the

§ 1203 complaint information reported in the
TIGTA Semiannual Reports to the Congress for the

L Pub. L. No. 105-206, 112 Stat. 685 (codified as amended in
scattered sectionsof 2 U.S.C.,5U.S.C.,,5U.S.C. app., 16 U.S.C,,
19U.S.C., 22 U.SC., 23 U.SC, 26 U.S.C., 31 U.SC., 38 U.SC,
and 49 U.S.C)).
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RRA 98 § 1203 providesthe
IRS Commissioner with the
authority to remove IRS
employeesfor certain proven
violations committed in
connection with the

performance of official duties.

Section 1203 complaints may
be investigated within the IRS
or within the TIGTA Office of

Investigations.

6-month periods ending March 31, 2000, and
September 30, 2000.

Details of the audit objectives, scope, and methodol ogy
are presented in Appendix |. Major contributors to this
report are listed in Appendix I1.

Background

On July 22, 1998, the President signed the RRA 98 into
law. RRA 98 § 1102(a) added Internal Revenue Code
(1.R.C.) 8§ 7803(d)(1)(E) (Supp. IV 1998) to require the
TIGTA to annually report to the Congress any termination
or mitigation under RRA 98 § 1203. Section 1203
provides the IRS Commissioner with the authority to
terminate the employment of IRS employees for certain
proven violations? committed in connection with the
performance of their officia duties. The IRS
Commissioner also has the authority to determine whether
mitigating factors exist that weigh against termination.
One example of an RRA 98 § 1203 violation is the willful
failure to obtain the required approval signatures on
documents authorizing the seizure of a taxpayer’s

property.

IRS employees and taxpayers may submit 8§ 1203
complaints through e-mail, regular mail, telephone, or
fax to any office within the IRS or the TIGTA Office of
Investigations. Once received, 8 1203 complaints may
be investigated by either the IRS or the TIGTA Office of
Investigations. In most instances, the TIGTA isgiven
the opportunity to review a § 1203 complaint to decide
who should conduct the investigation. The following
explains the types of 8§ 1203 complaints investigated by
the IRS and the TIGTA.

2 See Appendix V for an explanation of the provisions requiring
employee removal.
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Complaints that must bereferred tothe TIGTA

With the exception of potential Equal Employment
Opportunity-related complaints and tax-related issues,
the following complaints are referred directly and
immediately to the TIGTA Office of Investigations:

Section 1203 complaints related to all managers,
Senior Executive Service, Criminal Investigation, or
GS-15 employees.

Section 1203 complaints related to false statements
under oath, falsification of documents, assault or
battery, confidentiality and disclosure of return
information, or threat of audit.

Complaints that may bereferred tothe TIGTA

Based on preliminary investigation by the IRS,
complaints related to the remaining 8 1203 provisions
may be referred to the TIGTA Office of Investigations,
as follows:

Section 1203 complaints related to seizures,
congtitutional rights, or harassment/retaiation, if IRS
management determines that a potential § 1203
violation exists and threshold criteria have been met.

Section 1203 complaints related to discrimination
(civil rights), if IRS management determines that a
potential 8 1203 violation exists and specific criteria
have been met.

Section 1203 complaints related to late filing or the
understatement of tax liability, if IRS management
determines that a potential § 1203 violation exists

and the facts indicate a potentia criminal violation.

If the TIGTA Office of Investigations declines to
conduct an investigation, the complaint is referred to
the IRS through the CCPAG. The IRS Commissioner
established the CCPAG to enhance the IRS
responsiveness to employee and taxpayer complaints.
In October 1999, the CCPA G began receiving and
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controlling all 8 1203 complaints referred from the
TIGTA to the IRS.

Evaluation of 8 1203 Complaints

Once the facts are established through an inquiry or
investigation, IRS managers, with the assistance of
local labor relations speciaists and the staff of the
Centralized Adjudication Unit (CAU), evauate the
information to determine if a § 1203 violation has
occurred. If there is sufficient evidence to support that
a 8 1203 violation occurred, the employee is given a
letter advising that the IRS proposes to remove him or
her from Federal service. The employee has aright to
respond to this letter orally or in writing. After the
employee responds to the letter, a deciding IRS
management official determines if the evidence
supports the § 1203 violation charge. This factual
determination may be reviewed through arbitration or
the employee may appeal the charge of § 1203
misconduct to the Merit Systems Protection Board. |f
the employee’ s appeal is not successful and the § 1203
violation remains supported, the case is forwarded to
the Commissioner’s 8 1203 Review Board for
evaluation.

The Commissioner’s § 1203 Review Board evauates
all cases where there is enough evidence to support the
§ 1203 violation charge and recommends a disciplinary
action (either termination or mitigation) for each case.
The Review Board only forwards a 8§ 1203 case to the
IRS Commissioner if it determines that the
Commissioner should consider mitigation. If the
Review Board determines that the Commissioner
should not consider mitigation, the case is returned to
the deciding IRS management official and the
employee is removed from Federa service under the
authority of the Commissioner, as required by the
RRA 98.

Page 4
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Once the IRS Commissioner
reachesafinal decisionto
remove the employee, the
decision cannot be appeal ed.

Employees have the same rights to appeal aremoval
action as they did before the enactment of the RRA 98
and may appeal the charges of § 1203 misconduct
throughout the administrative process. However, once
the IRS Commissioner makes a final judicial or
administrative determination® that an employee
committed one of the § 1203 provisions, the final
decision cannot be appealed and the employeeis
removed from Federal service, as required by the
RRA 98.

During the time period covered by our review, the
TIGTA Office of Investigations used the Investigations
Management Information System (IMI1S) to control and
track § 1203 complaints. If acomplaint involves
allegations against more than one IRS employee, the
TIGTA tracks each employee as a separate allegation.
The IRS uses two computer systems, the Automated
Labor and Employee Relations Tracking System
(ALERTYS) and the Executive Correspondence
Management System (ECMS), to control and track

§ 1203 complaints.

When the RRA 98 became law on July 22, 1998, the
IRS and the TIGTA Office of Investigations began
developing procedures for the processing of § 1203
complaints. As with any new process, many procedures
changed during the beginning stages as each
organization determined the best way to jointly handle
these complaints. Asaresult, the processes and
systems for controlling 8 1203 complaints evolved as
both the IRS and the TIGTA gained experience in
implementing the law.

% A final judicial or administrative determination is any matter for
which all appeals have been exhausted, or the time for all appeals
has expired.
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The IRSand the TIGTA
Office of Investigations can
better ensure that § 1203
complaint information is
properly controlled and
accurately reported in the
TIGTA Semiannual Report to
the Congress.

Results

The IRS and the TIGTA Office of Investigations can
better ensure that RRA 98 § 1203 complaint information
is properly controlled and accurately reported in the
TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress. In generdl,
complaints referred from one office to another within the
TIGTA Office of Investigations, or from one office to
another within the IRS, were accounted for and arrived
at their final destination.

However, at the time of our review, management could
not locate 9 of the 173 complaints® in our sample, and
management information systems did not contain
current information for 22 of the 173 complaintsin the
sample. After we brought these issues to the attention
of IRS and TIGTA Office of Investigations
management, they began taking corrective actions to
locate the 9 complaints and update the computer
systems for the 22 complaints. We aso identified 28
allegations outside of our sample where the § 1203
violation code had been removed from the IMIS based
on the procedures in effect prior to June 2000. This
resulted in information being inconsistently reported in
the TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress.

Additionally, we identified two required § 1203 items
that were reported incorrectly in a Fiscal Year (FY)
2000 TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress and
five items not required to be reported that were
overstated in two FY 2000 semiannual reports.

4 All §1203 complaints are entered onto a computer inventory
system upon receipt and complaint documents are either scanned
into the inventory system or controlled in a paper file. For nine of
the complaints in the sample, management could not locate the
paper complaint file based on the information recorded on the
inventory systems.
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There were 31 complaints
from our sample that either
could not be located or where
the computer databasesdid
not contain current
information.

Nine complaints that were
transferred between offices
could not be located.

Section 1203 Complaints Could Not Always Be

Located and Management Information Was Not
Always Current or Consistent

For 31 of the 173 complaintsin our sample, either the
complaints could not be located from information
recorded on the computer databases (9 complaints) or
the computer databases did not contain current
information about the complaints (22 complaints). We
projected our findings to the total population of 1,213
open § 1203 complaints on the IRS and the TIGTA
databases as of September 30, 2000. According to the
projection, casework may not have been completed for
an estimated 38 complaints (+ 1.93 percent) and the
computer databases may not contain current
information for another 125 complaints

(x 4.23 percent).®

In addition to reviewing the sample of complaints, we
analyzed the IMIS and identified 28 allegations where
the 8§ 1203 violation code had been removed from the
system, which resulted in information being
inconsistently reported in the TIGTA Semiannual
Report to the Congress.

Transfers were not properly controlled for nine
complaints

At the time of our review, neither the IRS nor the
TIGTA Office of Investigations could locate 9 of the
173 complaints (5 percent) reviewed. Seven of the nine
complaints that could not be located were transferred
from the TIGTA Office of Investigationsto the IRS. As
aresult, we could not determine if the IRS had
completed its investigation for these complaints.

Five complaints were referred to the IRS according
to the IMIS, but neither the IRS nor the TIGTA

® See Appendix IV for an explanation of the ranges of complaints
(£ 1.93 percent and + 4.23 percent) that could be affected.
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Office of Investigations could provide us with a
copy of the required transmittal form, Complaint
Referra Memorandum - Response Required
(Form 2070), during the time of our review.

One complaint was referred using Form 2070, but
the TIGTA Office of Investigations did not have a
receipted copy of the Form 2070 to show that the
complaint reached its final destination. The TIGTA
Office of Investigations had referred the complaint
to aformer IRS Regiona Commissioner’s office
before the CCPA G was established.

One complaint was referred using Form 2070 and
the TIGTA Office of Investigations had a receipted
Form 2070, indicating that the CCPAG received the
complaint. However, the complaint was not
controlled on the ALERTS, which indicates that the
complaint may not have been worked.

The two remaining complaints that could not be located
were transferred from the CAU to afield Labor
Relations office. However, the field Labor Relations
offices had no record of receiving the complaints.

Transmittal forms are generally used to help ensure that
management maintains control of the documents as they
are transferred from one office to another. Use of a
transmittal form generally requires the receiving official
to acknowledge receipt of the document by sending a
signed copy of the form back to the originator. The
TIGTA Office of Investigations requires the use of
Form 2070 as a transmittal form when transferring
complaints.

IRS management does not require the use of a document
transmittal when transferring complaints within the IRS.
Instead, a cover letter is attached to the complaint and
the computer database is updated to show the complaint
was transferred. However, with this method of transfer,
there is no follow-up to ensure the employee receives
the complaint.
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Complaints cannot be tracked
systemically when transferred
between IRSand TIGTA
offices.

The computer systems did not
reflect current complaint
information for 22 complaints.

One complicating factor that increases the difficulty of
tracking complaints as they are transferred between the
IRS and the TIGTA Office of Investigations is the lack
of a uniform complaint numbering system to identify
complaints in both offices that are recorded on different
computer systems. Because the IRS and the TIGTA
computer systems were not designed to be integrated
with each other, each uses a different numbering system
to identify complaints. Without a common field to link
the computer systems, complaints that are transferred
between the IRS and the TIGTA Office of Investigations
cannot be systemically tracked between the two

organi zations.

If 8§ 1203 complaints are not properly controlled, the
administrative action required by law may not be taken
by the IRS Commissioner. Uncontrolled complaints
could also result in § 1203 information being
understated in the TIGTA Semiannua Report to the
Congress. Additionaly, if al actions are not
completed on complaints, employees may not have the
opportunity to be proven innocent.

Computer infor mation was not current for
22 complaints

Information contained on the IRS and the TIGTA
computer systems was not current for 22 of the 173
complaints (13 percent) in our sample at the time of our
review. Generaly, for these 22 complaints, the IMIS,
the ALERTS, or the ECMS databases either had not
been updated to show the most current work on the case
or the information had been entered incorrectly. For
example, the IMIS database indicated that ten
complaints had been referred to the IRS for action,
athough the IRS had completed action on the
complaints and closed them on its databases. For two
other complaints, the IMIS database showed the
complaints had been sent to the CMD when they had
actually been referred to the IRS for action.

The IRS and the TIGTA Office of Investigationsrely on
accurate management information to document the
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Twenty-eight complaints were
coded as § 1203 violationsin
March 2000 but not in
September 2000, resulting in
information being
inconsistently reported in the
TIGTA Semiannual Report to
the Congress.

location of complaints and to report § 1203 information.
Complaints are entered onto computer inventory
systems when received, and IRS and TIGTA employees
are responsible for updating their respective computer
systems whenever complaints are referred from one
office to another or when the status of a complaint
changes. If information is not updated when the status
of acomplaint changes (i.e., open, closed, referred), the
accuracy of the TIGTA Semiannua Report to the
Congress could be affected.

Computer information was not consistent for
28 allegations

The general 8 1203 information reported in the
semiannual report relies on accurate 8 1203 violation
code information. However, acomparison of the
September 2000 IMIS data with the March 2000 IMIS
data identified 28 allegations that were originally coded
as 8§ 1203 violations in March, but were no longer coded
as § 1203 violations in September. The TIGTA enters
al 8 1203 alegations received into the IMIS; however,
prior to June 2000, TIGTA employees sometimes
removed the 8 1203 violation code if the allegation did
not meet specific 8§ 1203 criteria. We could not
determine when the 8 1203 violation code for the

28 alegations had been removed, prior to June 2000 or
after.

The TIGTA Office of Investigations added procedures
in June 2000 to require the retention of the § 1203
violation code on the IMIS as originally entered. For
example, the TIGTA uses the § 1203 violation code to
determine the number of allegations received involving
potential 8§ 1203 violations. However, if the initia
investigation shows the charge of 8§ 1203 misconduct is
not supported, the TIGTA does not remove the § 1203
violation code from the IMIS. Instead, the TIGTA
continues to show the complaint as an allegation of

§ 1203 misconduct on the IMIS and updates the
complaint record with the appropriate closing code to
show the allegation was not supported.
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Consistent treatment of the § 1203 violation code is
important because this code is used in reporting
information in the TIGTA Semiannua Report to the
Congress. Removing the § 1203 violation code from an
allegation on the IMIS reduces the total number of
allegations received involving potential § 1203
violations reported in the semiannual report. As aresult,
information was inconsistently reported in the TIGTA
Semiannual Report to the Congress.

Recommendations

1. IRS CCPAG and TIGTA Office of Investigations
management should locate and compl ete necessary
actions for the remaining RRA 98 § 1203 complaints
that could not be located and should correct the
status for the remaining § 1203 complaints where the
information was not current.

Management’s Response: CCPAG and TIGTA
Investigations management have either found, or
recreated and resolved the remaining complaints that
could not be located. They have also updated the
remaining complaints where status information was not
current.

2. IRSCCPAG and TIGTA Office of Investigations
management should develop a process to better
control § 1203 complaints. The process should
include:

Using a transmittal form to transfer complaints
between the IRS and the TIGTA.

Acknowledging receipt (via transmittal form) of
the complaint by the receiving office (for
complaints transferred between the IRS and the
TIGTA).

Following up with the receiving office if receipt

of the complaint is not acknowledged (for
complaints transferred between the IRS and the
TIGTA).
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Following up with the receiving office to ensure
the complaint was received (for complaints
transferred within the IRS).

Updating the complaint status on al relevant
computer databases when complaints are
transferred or closed.

Exploring the feasibility of capturing a unique
complaint number on the IRS and TIGTA
databases.

Management’s Response: The CCPAG management
processes have evolved and they now have an electronic
system in place to control the transfer of complaints
within the IRS and a manual system to control the
transfer of complaints outside the IRS. Both systems
provide a verification of receipt, atrail of actions, and a
means to follow-up to ensure complaints are not lost.
Information is exchanged with the TIGTA Office of
Investigations to show actions taken on complaints.
Also, the CCPAG decided the use of acommon
complaint number was not feasible without a common
information system.

The TIGTA Office of Investigations has a manual
process in place to control the transfer of complaints.
Specia Agentsin Charge (SAC) will be advised, via
memorandum, of their responsibilities to verify receipt
of any 8§ 1203 complaints forwarded to the IRS. Also,
the SACs and the CMD will be advised of the
importance of current and accurate information on their
management information systems. In addition, afield is
available to capture an IRS complaint number, if
applicable.
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3. TIGTA Office of Investigations management should
develop a consistent method for identifying the
number of § 1203 allegations received for reporting
inthe TIGTA Semiannua Report to the Congress.

Management’s Response: Notification will be provided
to TIGTA Office of Investigations personnel that once a
§ 1203 complaint is entered into the management
information system, the violation code will only be
removed if management has determined the code was
placed there in error.

Section 1203 Complaint Information Reported
in the Semiannual Reports to the Congress

Was Not Always Accurate and Did Not
Represent All Complaints

We compared § 1203 complaint information reported in
the FY 2000 TIGTA Semiannual Reports to the
Congressto § 1203 complaint documentation obtained
from the IRS CCPAG and the TIGTA CMD. Two
required items were reported incorrectly in one FY 2000
semiannua report and five items not required to be
reported were overstated in two FY 2000 semiannual
reports.

The following chart summarizes the § 1203 information
reported in the FY 2000 TIGTA Semiannual Reports to
the Congress. The information on terminations and
mitigated cases is required by the RRA 98; the other
information is not required, but represents the actions
taken on the § 1203 allegations received by the TIGTA.
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Reported Versus Actual 8§ 1203 Information

Overstated/
Reported Actual (Understated)
April FY 2000 Semiannual Report
Information Required By RRA 98:

Terminations 11 11 0
Mitigated Cases 0 0 0
Other General Information:
8 1203 Allegations Received 369 369 0
§ 1203 Investigations Initiated 89 78 11
Open § 1203 Investigations 65 56 9
Closed § 1203 Investigations 24 22 2
§ 1203 Complaints Referred to the IRS 213 199 14

October FY 2000 Semiannual Report
Information Required By RRA 98:

Terminations 15 17 (2)
Mitigated Cases 1 2 (1)
Other General Information:
§ 1203 Allegations Received 257 251 6
§ 1203 Investigations Initiated 164 164 0
Open § 1203 Investigations 132 132 0
Closed § 1203 Investigations 32 32 0
8 1203 Complaints Referred to the IRS 108 108 0

Source: FY 2000 TIGTA Semiannual Reports to the
Congress, TIGTA'’s IMIS database, and documentation

from the CCPAG.

The numbers of § 1203 ter minations and mitigated
cases wer e not always accur ately reported by the IRS

Weidentified all 8 1203 cases evaluated by the
Commissioner’s § 1203 Review Board during FY 2000
and compared the final disciplinary actions
recommended by the Review Board (termination or
mitigation) with CCPAG Outreach and Policy Support
information and with the ALERTS computer data to
determine the accuracy of the number of terminations
and mitigated cases reported in the FY 2000 TIGTA
Semiannual Reportsto the Congress. TheIRSis
responsible for accurately reporting the number of
terminations and mitigated cases to the TIGTA for
inclusion in the TIGTA Semiannua Report to the
Congress.
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The number of terminations
and mitigated cases was
understated by three in the
TIGTA Semiannual Report to
the Congressfor the
6-month period ending
September 30, 2000.

Based upon incorrect information provided by the IRS,
the TIGTA reported 15 terminations and 1 mitigated
case in its Semiannual Report to the Congress for the
6-month period ending September 30, 2000. However,
there were actually 17 terminations and 2 mitigated
cases recorded on the IRS computer systems for this
period. 1.R.C. § 7803(d)(1)(E) (Supp. 1V 1998) requires
the TIGTA to annually report to the Congress all
terminations or mitigated cases under RRA 98 § 1203.

The IRS tracks all personnel actions on the ALERTS;
however, at the time the data was gathered for the
semiannual report, the CCPAG Outreach and Policy
Support staff did not have direct access to the ALERTS.
Instead, the CCPAG staff relied on a“datacal”® to
determine the total number of terminations and
mitigated cases to report to the TIGTA Office of
Investigations, but did not have access to the computer
data to ensure that the numbers were correct and
complete. In January 2001, the CCPAG Outreach and
Policy Support function was given direct access to this
computer data and became solely responsible for
tracking the number of terminations and mitigated cases
under 8 1203. This should prevent the problem from
recurring.

General § 1203 infor mation was not always
accur ately reported by the Office of | nvestigations

In addition to reporting the required information on
terminations and mitigated cases under 8§ 1203 in its
Semiannual Report to the Congress, the TIGTA Office
of Investigations also includes general § 1203
information, such as the number of § 1203 allegations
received by the TIGTA and the number of § 1203
Investigations initiated.

® A “datacall” isarequest, typically vialetter, for information from
various sources when the information needed cannot be collected
through any other means.
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Five general 8 1203 items
were overstated in two

FY 2000 TIGTA Semiannual
Reports to the Congress.

However, five’ § 1203 items not required to be reported
were overstated in two FY 2000 TIGTA Semiannual
Reports to the Congress. These overstatements could
have been prevented if the § 1203 information had been
independently verified prior to issuance of the
semiannual reports, in accordance with internal
guidelines.

For example, for the 6-month period ending

March 30, 2000, the number of 8§ 1203 investigations
initiated was overstated by 11 and the number of § 1203
complaints referred to the IRS was overstated by 14.
The inaccuracies for this reporting period occurred
because the TIGTA CMD staff who consolidated the

§ 1203 information did not always use the correct
criteriain their calculations.

For the 6-month period ending September 30, 2000, the
TIGTA overstated the number of § 1203 allegations
received by six. This overstatement occurred because
the CMD staff calculated the number of § 1203
allegations received for the entire fiscal year and then
subtracted the number of 8 1203 allegations reported in
the previous 6-month period. This methodology should
have worked; however, the § 1203 violation code had
been changed for several of the § 1203 allegations
reported in the previous 6-month period.

Reported information did not include the r esults of
all § 1203 complaints

The type of information on § 1203 complaints presented
inthe TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress
complies with the RRA 98 requirements. In addition,
the TIGTA Office of Investigations includes general

§ 1203 information that is not required by the law.

" See the chart on page 14 for an explanation of the five items.

Page 16



Improvements Should Be Made to Better Control and Report
Internal Revenue Service Restructuring and Reform Act of 1998

Section 1203 Information

The TIGTA could provide
additional information in its
Semiannual Report to present
a more compl ete picture of
actions resulting from § 1203
violations.

We identified severa other types of information that
might be useful in presenting a more complete picture of
the results of § 1203 complaints, such as the number of:

Employees under investigation who chose to resign
or retirein lieu of termination under § 1203.

Employees whose removal (termination) during their
probationary period was due to a § 1203 violation.

Employees whose charge of § 1203 misconduct, and
subsequent termination, was reversed through an

appedl.
Section 1203 complaints received and investigated

within the IRS that do not require TIGTA
investigation.

Although this information is not required, it would
provide a more complete picture of actions resulting

from § 1203 complaints. For example, from

July 22, 1998, (the date the RRA 98 was enacted) through
March 31, 2001, there were 41 terminations under

8 1203. However, there were 93 additional employees
during this same period that resigned or retired after

8§ 1203 administrative procedures were initiated. The

93 resignations or retirements were not reported in any
TIGTA Semiannua Report to the Congress.

Recommendations

4. TIGTA CMD management should ensure that the
general 8 1203 information is verified before it is
included in the TIGTA Semiannual Report to the
Congress.

Management’s Response: Standard criteria have been
developed to extract § 1203 information. In addition, an
independent review of the information will be conducted
prior to its release.

5. The TIGTA Office of Investigations should consider
reporting in the Semiannua Report to the Congress
the number of employees who retire or resign in lieu

Page 17



Improvements Should Be Made to Better Control and Report
Internal Revenue Service Restructuring and Reform Act of 1998
Section 1203 Information

of termination under § 1203, the number of
employees who are removed during their
probationary period due to a 8 1203 violation, the
number of employees whose charge of § 1203
misconduct (and subsequent termination) is reversed
through an appeal, and the number of § 1203
complaints received and investigated within the IRS
that do not require TIGTA investigation.

Until the number of § 1203 complaints received and
investigated within the IRS (not requiring TIGTA
investigation) can be included in the semiannual
report, TIGTA Office of Investigations management
should clarify that the 8 1203 numbers reported in
the TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress do
not depict the results of all § 1203 violations.

Management’s Response: TIGTA Office of
Investigations management will consider reporting this
information in future Semiannual Reports.

Conclusion

The IRS and the TIGTA Office of Investigations can
better ensure that RRA 98 § 1203 complaint information is
properly controlled and accurately reported in the TIGTA
Semiannual Report to the Congress. Due to the sensitivity
of 8 1203 complaints, improvements should be made to
ensure that § 1203 complaints are properly controlled
when transferred between offices, that complaint
information on computer databases is current, and that

8§ 1203 information is verified before being included in the
TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress.
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Appendix |

Detailed Objectives, Scope, and Methodology

The overall objectives of this audit were to determine if Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
Restructuring and Reform Act of 1998 (RRA 98)* Section (8) 1203 complaints were
properly controlled by the IRS and the Treasury Inspector General for Tax
Administration (TIGTA) and if RRA 98 § 1203 complaint information was accurately
reported in the TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congress. We performed the following

work:
[

Determined if § 1203 complaints were properly controlled by the IRS and the
TIGTA Office of Investigations.

A.

Interviewed IRS Commissioner’s Complaint Processing and Analysis Group
(CCPAG) personnel to determine how complaints are received, controlled,
and tracked. Performed a walk-through of the CCPAG and prepared a
flowchart of the process.

Interviewed TIGTA Complaint Management Division (CMD) personnel to
determine how complaints are received, controlled, and tracked. Performed a
walk-through of the CMD and prepared a flowchart of the process.

Obtained an extract of the TIGTA Investigations Management Information
System (IMIYS) as of September 30, 2000, and requested all 8 1203 records
from the IRS Automated Labor and Employee Relations Tracking System
(ALERTS) and the Executive Correspondence Management System (ECMS)
as of September 30, 2000. Identified 211 § 1203 complaints on the IMISin
the status “referred to the IRS’ and 36 8§ 1203 complaints on the ALERTS or
the ECMS in the status “referred to the TIGTA” as of September 30, 2000.

Identified 321 open 8§ 1203 complaints on the IMIS and 645 open 8§ 1203

complaints on the ALERTS or the ECMS that were in a“non-referred” status
as of September 30, 2000.

Selected a statistically valid sample of 70 open § 1203 complaints from the
population identified in Step I.C. that were referred either from the IRS to the
TIGTA Office of Investigations (10 complaints) or from the TIGTA Office

L Pub. L. No. 105-206, 112 Stat. 685 (codified as amended in scattered sections of 2 U.S.C., 5U.S.C.,
5U.S.C. app., 16 U.S.C,,19U.S.C,22U.SC., 23U.S.C,26 U.SC, 31U.SC. 38U.S.C,and 49 U.S.C).
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of Investigations to the IRS (60 complaints). Located the complaints and
obtained copies of the complaint history documentation. Based the sample
selection criteria on the following criteria

Referred Total IMIS ALERTS ECMS
Population 247 211 12 24
Precision 10 %

Error Rate 50%

Confidence Level 95%

Sample Size 70 60 3 7

Our precision and error rates were larger in the referred sample than in
the non-referred sample (Step 1.F.) because, in our opinion, complaints
transferred between offices had a higher risk of not being controlled than
complaints that were not transferred. We used an expected error rate of
50 percent to provide the largest potential sample. We used a 10 percent
precision rate because if we found uncontrolled complaints, the precision
of the sample would be immaterial.

F. Selected a statistically valid sample of 103 open § 1203 complaints from the
population identified in Step 1.D. that were in a“non-referred” status on the
IRS systems (69 complaints) or the TIGTA system (34 complaints). Located
the complaints and obtained copies of the complaint history documentation.
Based the sample selection criteria on the following criteria:

Non-referred Totd IMIS ALERTS ECMS
Population 966 321 418 227
Precision 4%

Error Rate 5%

Confidence Level 95%

Sample Size 103 34 45 24

[. Determined if 8§ 1203 complaint information was accurately reported in the
Fiscal Year (FY) 2000 TIGTA Semiannua Reports to the Congress.

A. Interviewed appropriate CCPAG and CMD personnel to determine:

1.

The process for compiling and reporting the required information on
terminations or mitigated cases under § 1203.

The process for compiling and reporting information regarding TIGTA
§ 1203 complaint investigations.
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B. ldentified all § 1203 cases reviewed by the Commissioner’s 1203 Review
Board for FY 2000 and determined if the disciplinary actions (termination or

mitigation) taken on these cases were reflected in the respective TIGTA
Semiannual Report to the Congress.

C. Determined the accuracy of the general 8 1203 information reported in the
FY 2000 TIGTA Semiannua Reports to the Congress.

D. Identified al complaints that were coded as § 1203 on the March 2000 IMIS
database but were not coded as 8 1203 on the September 2000 IMIS database.
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Appendix IV

Outcome Measures

This appendix presents detailed information on the measurable impact that our
recommended corrective actions will have on tax administration. These benefits will be
incorporated into our Semiannual Report to the Congress.

Type and Value of OQutcome M easure:

Reliability of Information:

Actual — 28 allegations for which computer information was not consi stent
(see page 7).

Potential — 38 complaints (+ 1.93 percent) where casework may not have been

completed and another 125 complaints (+ 4.23 percent) where the computer
databases may not contain current information (see page 7).

M ethodology Used to Measure the Reported Benefit:

Actual - We compared the March 2000 Treasury Inspector General for Tax
Administration (TIGTA) Investigations Management Information System (IMI1S) to the
September 2000 TIGTA IMIS and identified 28 allegations that were coded as Section
(8) 1203 violations in March, but were no longer coded as 8 1203 violations in
September. The § 1203 violation code had been removed from the system for these

28 dlegations.

Potential - We obtained an extract of the TIGTA IMIS and requested all § 1203 records
from the Internal Revenue Service's (IRS) Automated Labor and Employee Relations
Tracking System and the Executive Correspondence Management System as of
September 30, 2000. From these data extracts, we identified 1,213 open

§ 1203 complaints on the IRS and TIGTA databases as of September 30, 2000. We
stratified the § 1203 complaint population into two sub-populations: complaints that were
in areferred status and complaints that were not in areferred status.
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We randomly selected a statistically valid sample of 173 complaints from the 2
sub-populations. Details of our methodology are presented in Appendix I. The following

chart summarizes the population sizes, sample sizes, and the numbers of exceptions
(errors) found in each sample.

Exceptions
Population | Sample | Complaintsthat Complaints
Sub-population Sze Sze Could Not Be | with Incorrect
L ocated Status
Referred complaints 247 70 8 14
Non-referred complaints 966 103 1 8
Totas 1,213 173 9 22

To proportionately weight the results from each sample, we divided each sub-population
of complaints (referred and non-referred) by the total population of complaints, as follows.

247 referred complaints/ 1,213 total complaints = 0.2036
966 non-referred complaints/ 1,213 total complaints = 0.7964

For each exception category (complaints that could not be located and complaints with

incorrect status), we calculated the estimated percent of error in the total population, as
follows:

Complaints that could not be located

Calculated the error rate within each sub-population by dividing the number of
complaints that could not be located in each sample by the total number of complaints
in that sample.

8 complaints could not be located / 70 referred complaints sampled = 0.1143
1 complaint could not be located / 103 non-referred complaints sampled = 0.0097

Multiplied the error rate from each sub-population by its weighted proportion to the
total population and added the results.

(0.2036 * 0.1143) + (0.7964 * 0.0097) = 0.0310034726
0.0310034726 = 3.1 percent error in total population
Multiplied the total population by the percent of error.

1,213 * 3.1 percent = 38 complaints that could not be located.
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Lower and Upper Limits

Cdlculated the lower limit of the error rate.*

0.0310034726-NORMSINV (0.975)* SQRT((1/1213)"2* (24772* (247-70)/247)*
((8/70)* (62/70)/69)+966"2* ((966-103)/966)* ((1/103)* (102/103)/102))) = 0.0117004877

Calculated the upper limit of the error rate.

0.0310034726+NORMSINV (0.975)* SQRT ((1/1213)"2* (247 2* (247-70)/247)*
((8/70)* (62/70)/69)+966"2* ((966-103)/966)* ((1/103)* (102/103)/102))) = 0.0503064574

Calculated the difference between the error rate in the total population and the lower
and upper limits of error.?

Lower limit: 0.0117004877 — 0.0310034726 = -0.0193029848 (negative 1.93 percent)
Upper limit; 0.0503064574 — 0.0310034726 = 0.0193029848 (positive 1.93 percent)

Complaints with incorrect status

Calculated the error rate within each sub-population by dividing the number of

instances where the computer databases did not contain current information in each
sample by the total number of complaints in that sample.

14 complaints with incorrect status / 70 referred complaints sampled = 0.2000
8 complaints with incorrect status/ 103 non-referred complaints sampled = 0.0777

Multiplied the error rate from each sub-population by its weighted proportion to the
total population and added the results.

(0.2036 * 0.2000) + (0.7964 * 0.0777) = 0.1025796589
0.1025796589 = 10.26 percent error in total population

1 In the upper and lower limit formulas, the function NORMSINV returns the inverse of the standard
normal cumulative distribution. The distribution has a mean of zero and a standard deviation of one. The
function SQRT returns a positive square root.

2 The lower and upper limits equal the projected number of complaints that could not be located
(38 complaints) plus or minus 1.93 percent.
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Multiplied the total population by the percent of error.

1,213 * 10.26 percent = 125 complaints® where the computer databases may not
contain current information.

Lower and Upper Limits

Calculated the lower limit of the error rate.

0.1025796589-NORM SINV (0.975)* SQRT((1/1213)"2* (247"2* ((247-70)/247)*
((14/70)* (56/70)/69)+966"2* ((966-103)/966)* ((8/103)* (95/103)/102))) = 0.0602323072

Calculated the upper limit of the error rate.

0.1025796589+NORM SINV (0.975)* SQRT ((1/1213)"2* (24772* ((247-70)/247)*
((14/70)* (56/70)/69)+966"2* ((966-103)/966)* ((8/103)* (95/103)/102))) = 0.1449270105

Calculated the difference between the error rate in the total population and the lower
and upper limits of error.*

Lower limit: 0.0602323072 —0.1025796589 = -0.0423473517 (negative 4.23 percent)
Upper limit: 0.1449270105 — 0.1025796589 = 0.0423473517 (positive 4.23 percent)

3 The actual result of the equation is124.4291262136, but we rounded the result up to 125 because it is
impossible to have a portion of acomplaint.

* The lower and upper limits equal the projected number of complaints where the computer databases may
not contain current information (125 complaints) plus or minus 4.23 percent.
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Appendix V

Internal Revenue Service Restructuring and Reform Act of 19981
Section 1203 Provisions Requiring Termination of Employment

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) must terminate the employment of an IRS employee
(absent direct intervention by the IRS Commissioner) if there is afinal administrative or
judicial determination that, in the course of hisor her official duties, the employee
committed one of the following provisions:

8 1203(b)(2) Willful failure to obtain the required approval signatures on documents
authorizing the seizure of ataxpayer’s home, personal belongings, or
business assets.

§ 1203(b)(2) Providing false statements under oath with respect to a material matter
involving ataxpayer or taxpayer representative.

§ 1203(b)(3) With respect to a taxpayer, taxpayer representative, or other employee
of the IRS, the violation of:

(A) Any right under the Constitution of the United States; or
(B) Any civil right established under:
(i) TitleVI or VII of the Civil Rights Act of 19642
(i) TitleIX of the Education Amendments of 1972,3
(iii) The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967,*
(iv) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975,

'Pub. L. No. 105-206, 112 Stat. 685 (codified as amended in scattered sections of 2 U.S.C., 5U.S.C.,
5U.S.C. app., 16 U.S.C,, 19 U.S.C,22U.SC., 23U.S.C,26 U.SC., 31U.SC., 38U.S.C,and 49 U.S.C)).

2 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000a - 2000h (1994).
320 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1688 (1994).
429 U.S.C. §§ 621 et seq. (1994).

® 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq. (1994).
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(v) Section 501 or 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,° or
(vi) Title | of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.’

8 1203(b)(4) Falsifying or destroying documents to conceal mistakes made by any
employee with respect to a matter involving a taxpayer or taxpayer
representative.

8 1203(b)(5) Assault or battery on ataxpayer, taxpayer representative, or other
employee of the IRS, but only if thereisacriminal conviction, or a

final adverse judgment by a court in acivil case, with respect to the
assault or battery.

§ 1203(b)(6) Violations of the Internal Revenue Code (1.R.C.) of 1986, Department
of Treasury regulations, or policies of the IRS (including the Internal
Revenue Manual) for the purpose of retaliating against, or harassing, a
taxpayer, taxpayer representative, or other employee of the IRS.

§ 1203(b)(7) Willful misuse of the provisions of § 6103 of the |.R.C. of 1986 for the
purpose of concealing information from a Congressional inquiry.

§ 1203(b)(8) Willful failure to file any tax return required under the I.R.C. of 1986
on or before the date prescribed therefore (including any extensions),
unless such failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful
neglect.

§ 1203(b)(9) Willful understatement of Federal tax liability, unless such
understatement is due to reasonable cause and not willful neglect.

§ 1203(b)(10) Threatening to audit a taxpayer for the purpose of extracting persona
gain or benefit.

®29 U.S.C. §§ 701-797 (1994).
742 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq. (1994).
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Appendix VI

Internal Revenue Service Commissioner’s Complaint Processing &
Analysis Group’s Response to the Draft Report

_0S/ha/81  FR1 1a:24 FAX 202 N27 7283 TIGTA 14:4: 18P vaz
AN e EA S O R AR Larmls

o2

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY RECEIVED
INTERNAL REVEMUE FERVICE
WASHINGTON, B, 26214 I SRR
_____ pe
SEF 10 200

MEMORANDUM FOR / SSISTANT INSPECTOR GENERAL FOR AUDIT
{(MEADOUARTERS OPERATIONS AND EXEMPT

CORGANIZATIONG PE }
FROM: gitaphan Whitlo )
Chractor, Commissiorers Complainl Processing and Analysis
Ciroup oo T
SUBJECT: [waft Audit Repart - Improvements Should Be Made to Better

{ontrol and Repart Internai Revanus Sarvice Restruciuring and
Flaform Act of 1998 Saction 1203 Information {Audit
#2000 10045)

Thank youw for the opporiunity Yo commeant on the above rafuonced draft audit report. |
agree that we must properly control Saclion 1203 complamts from recelpt through final
disposition. | appreciaty: the courtesy the auci team extended in sharing information
about the problems they found, which has aBowed L to correct tham more q!.:lckly, e
have daterminad the prbleme wee related to record keeping, and that we did not
overiock any potental misconduct issues. | separately provided a slatus report on each
of tha compiaints whata the awdi tsam found a peoblem in sccounting fer the actions we
took in reeponae to thate complaints.

The processes and stz for controliing Section 4203 complsints avolved as the IRS
ans TIGTA gainad :ltyplriu'u in implementing the law. Asthe IRS and TIGTA
racognized problems, we modiflod OUT prOCESSEs to improve accountability and control.
For exampie, soma of the coses Inm-undtnndtwwamodwmmw:ﬂ
TIGTA Complaint Referal Mamornds (Farma 2070 and 2070A) twough CCPAG, The
curent pocesses corract the doficiencies we and the audit team Ideriied_

In summarizing the imhul\dchﬂmﬂlnal.lﬁt.lharapoﬂdmsrﬂadaqmtely
un‘:muuhmmp;wwmwmmmlmu and those where ane of the
databmses did not conteln eument informatlon. Tha databases did rlg‘tum mﬂled
»mm.mwmnamng 088 respon
g“&%m ﬂmwmmmmw;mm compiaints that wa
muunmmuardhammdndmmmmmpoudd(nlnnhd
m.ﬂmmnw:mdnndmpmpuﬁydhpmedoﬂ.



Improvements Should Be Made to Better Control and Report
Internal Revenue Service Restructuring and Reform Act of 1998
Section 1203 Information

The discussion at page 7 of the drall mixes tha two issues, but the following pages
discuss the isaues separately. As a result, the summary Information oversiates the
seriousness of the problems identified. | suggest you separate the sum mary informaticn
on page 7 Info twa distinct projections of the potential scope of the problems,

The draft report points out inconsistencies in the databases IRS end TIGTA used to
track actions on Seclion 1203 compiaints. However, classification of an allegation of
misconduct as  potantial Section 1203 allegation is nol & purely objeclive
determination. The IRS and TIGTA evaluate each aliegation 1o determine whether the
facts alleged, if proven, could be an act of misconduct and, if so, whether the misconduct
could be a violation of Sectien 1203. This subjective elerment in svaluating allegations
makes it difficult, and ullimately not productive, for TIGTA and IRS 1o recongile the
numbers in various categories in each database. The IRS and TIGTA have agreed that
the Automated Labor and Employse Refations Tracking System (ALERTS) dala provide
the best insight inta the number and nature of Section 1203 allegations. We also agreed
we will use the Executive Correspondance Managemsnt System (ECMS) and the TIGTA
informaticn system dJata to enswre TIGTA and IRS properly conirol the allegations from
receipt through final disposition, regardless of how they are classified.

The fellowing is our responge to the two recommendations directed to the IRS CCPAG
and TIGTA office of Investigations.

Recommendation #1:

IRS CCPAG and TIGTA Office of Invastigations managament should locate anl resolva
the 9 missing complaints and corract the status far the 22 complainis that were not
updated.

Assessment of Caugg;

We have provided separately spacific information on tha disposition of the § complaints
that could not be located. In general, we found the allegations had been appropriately
disposed of, but informadion was not recorded in the appropriate databaca. Five ware
frivolous allegalions. The other four were reviewed and found not substantiated. As
casa tracking and management procedures have evolved, we corrected the weaknesses
that made it difficult to locatls these cages.

Of the 22 cases where a database contained incomect infarmation, three involved IRS
databases. Two of the thres ans attributable to tracking and managemsnt procedures
that we have since corrected. The third case involves a delay in updating the status of a
case [n ALERTS. All three IRS systems show the cumrent case status.
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Comective Actian:

We worked with TIGTA Investigations to locate and resolve the remaining allegations
that esuld not be located and updated the computer database status for the ocomplaints

in the Incorrect slatug. Information about tha Individual cases was provided separately
to TIGTA

Auguet 8, 2001

Responsible Official:

Diractar, Commissioner’s Cormmglaint Processing & Analysis Group
Racommand

IRS CCPAG and TIGTA Office of Investigations managernant should develop a process
to better control §1203 complaints, The process should include:

« Lsing a transmittal form 1o transfer complginls betweaen ihe IRS and the TIGTA.

s Acknowledging receipt {via transmittal form} of the complaint by the recsiving
offlea {for complaints ransferred belween the IRS and the TIGTAL

Following up with the receiving office if receipt of the complaint is not
acknow edged office {for complsints traneferrad betwesn the IRS and tha
TIGTA}.

Fellowing up with the recelving office to ensure the complaint was received office
{far complainis mansfermed within the IRS),

Updating the complaint status on all rolevent compular databases when
complaints are transforred or cloged.

Exploring the feasibility of capturing 4 unique complaint numbaer on the IRS and
TIGTA databases.

Assessment of Gauge:

Procasses within IRS and TIGTA have evolvad ag new organizations gained experience
implementing & new program. The features descrbed in the recommendation are
already parl of gur processes.
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Correclive Action:

We use the eleclronic features of the Executive Comespondence and Managemeni
Bystem to control fransfarred cases within IRS, and we use a manual control (Form
3210] to Iransfer cases oulside of IRS. Bath systems provide a verification of receipt. a
trail of actions taken on the case, and a means 1o follow-up ta ensure the recelving office
actually hae possession of the case.,

= Alegations referred to RS Business Units are monilored on the Executive
Correspondence and Managament Systam. Whan action i campisted, the Business
Unit sends the TIGTA Complaint Referral Memorandum (Form 2070) to the TIGTA,
with information on the action taken. A copy is also provided to CGPAG, which is
responsible for racording the disposition of the allagation on the Executlve
Correspondence and Management System. CCPAG will not close the casa without
a capy of the Form 2070

= We provide status irformation to TIGTA so that the TIGTA database can be updated.

+ Wa have explored with TIGTA tha feasibllity of a common complaint number, and
concluded itis not feasible without a cormmon indormation system.

lniplementation Date:

August &, 2001

Responsible Official:

Director, Commissioner's Complaint Processing & Analysis Group

Please contact ma at (202) 622-6383 or Stu Slihgl at {202) 622-7263 if you nave any
guestions.
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Appendix VII

Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration Office of Investigations’
Response to the Draft Report

OEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
WASHIROTON, DL, 20250

September 21, 2001

MEMORANDUM FOR DEPUTY INSPECTOR GENERAL FOR AUDIT

FROM: Robert . Cortgsl <4437
Deputy Inspector General for Investigalions

SUBRJECT: Draft Audit Report — Improvernents Should be Made to Belter
Contral and Report Infemal Revenua Servica (IRS) Restructuring
And Refom Acl of 1885 (RRA 28] Sactinn 1202 (nformatian

Thank you for the appartunity to review and commeant on your drafl report and
recommendations regarding our handling and reporling of Section {§) 1203 information.
We take the review and appropriate bandling of al complaints refeed to the Treasury
Inspacicr Ganaral for Tax Admmisiration [TIGTA) very sedously.

The ovarall oblective of this audit was to determine if RRA 98 § 1203 complaints wene
propery controlied by the IRS and TIGTA amd i § 1209 complaint information was
accurately reporied in the Semiannual Reparl to the Congrese.

Yaur report reflacts that at the time of the review, IRS and TIGTA management
colactivaly could not locate nina of the 173 semphed § 1203 complaints, and that IRS
andfor TIGTA managemeant informaticn systems did not contain cumant information for
22 of the 173 sampled § 1203 comploints. Also, you identified 28 allegations oulside
the sample whers the § 1203 vialation coda had best ramoved from the Managament
Informetion System (IS} which resutted in inconsistent, but not nacessarily inaccuratae,
raporting in the Semannual Repart io the Cengrese.  Lastly, you identified two required
§ 1203 itens that wara allegedly reportad inaccarataly in a Fiscal Year (FY} 2000
TIGTA Semiannual Report to the Congresa and five itema nat mquired 1o be eparted
that were apparently overstated in the two FY 2000 samiannual reports,

You reported that either the IRS or TIGTA could not locate nine § 1203 compleints for
review by your staff. We determined that six of thoge nine complaints belonged to
TIGTA. We have alnce located four of the six complaint flles snd recreated the e
remaining complaints from informatien cortained in our MI3, and forwarded the
complaint informedion to the IRS for processing.

Of tho 22 complsints that did not have cument infrmation in the raspective dalabases,
16 belonged o TIGTA. We have updaied our MIS for 16 of the 19 complainte 1o thsir
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r!-lnst current statug, e.g., 11 complaints were closed, two compiaints wera chan
"mronn?ﬁnn cnly”, wo complaints were changed 1o *“Refarred Erﬁu::im and nng:d ®
complaint was changed to "Assaciate with sn Ongaing Investigation®. The three
remaining complainis are accurately represented in our database, The dalabase
entties are consisiont with the information reported to us and cotained in our fies,

In your audit you idantified 28 § 1203 complaints thal were mmoved from the MIS “in
armar’. Ag we previously advised your staff, prior to the June 2000 version of the
Special Agent Handbook, staff members In the Complaint Management Division (CMD)
risvigwed all § 1202 allegations 1o determine whether thene was an apparent basis for a
§ 1203 violation cede Inour MIS,  As a matter of palicy, if il was subsequanty
delermined that if thers was no basis, the § 1203 vialation code was removed fiom the
inctividual record. Araued June 2004, a decision was made by Office of Investigations
mansgament, lor data consistency of raporting 81203 Infarmation in the Sernlannual
Repor to the Congress and cther TIGTA documantis, that we would not take the § 1203
vicdatlon code out of our MIS ance it had baen éntarad. The 28 complalms menticnead
in your audit report that had the § 1203 violation code removed did not meel the rribaria
ta have baen labeled a § 12032, and, therefore the code had been remaved In
accordance with govarning palicy at the time.

Laztly, you ldaniified two raguired § 1203 Rems that wara raported incomacty in a

FY 2000 TIGTA Semiannual Report ta the Congrass and five Hems not requirad to be
reported that were inadvertently overslaled in the twa FY 2000 Semiannual raports.
Tha two required § 12003 lems, tha |RS provides TIGTA with the femination and
mitigation statlslles. For the items Lhat were cverstated, wa faied to use standard
criterta when axtracting the dela.

CQur commenis on the recommeandationa are as follows:

IDENTITY OF RECOMMENDATION ¥1

Tha IRS Commissioner's Complalnt Propassing and Analysis Group (CCPAG) and
TIGTA Cfice of Invasligatinons managemant should locate and complele necassary
actions for the remalnkng REA § 1203 complaints that could not be lecated and should
camec] the status for the remaining § 1202 complaints where the nformation was not

cumment.

ASSESSMENT OF CAUSE

A1 the time of the audit review, some of e complaint files were nolin their proper
lacation and coukd not be refrieved for review by the audi staff, For 16 of the 15
complaints, MIS did nol contain the mast current slalus infomation.
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CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

Prior 1o the issuance of this draft report, TIGTA Investigations found four of #he six
misplaced complaint ez, Twe complaint fles 1hat ware not located wears recraajed from
informalicn contained in tha MIS and reizsusd 1o tha IRS far appropiate action.

MNew procedures are being Implemented regerding release of complaint fles to
parscmnal culzide of CMD.  Also, a eview of CMD's complaint fila invenlory will be
urkeriaken in ihe naxt yaar o venfy thet all complaint files are accounted for.

For the 158 complaints that did nol have current information in the MIS, 168 complainis
had not been updated timely. Two complaints were ciosed based on infermalion
raceived fram the IRS and TIGTA was not natified that tha IRS had eopened the
complaint. One complalnt was stll i an open stahus because the TIGTA Field Dhislon
had not received the cloging documents from the IRS. The Fietd Civision has since
recalved those documents and closed the complalint

We have updaled our dalabase for 17 of the 18 compladnde to Their mogt curcent status,
For the tyo roopensd complaints, we will not change aur dogsed stetus.,

TIGTA Ofce of Investgations management will be advised via mamarandum of The
importance of having current irformation In tha Investigations database.

IMPLEMENTATION QATE
April 1, 2002

RESFCNSIBLE DFFICIAL o
AesisEnt inspector Genaral for Investigations (A/G)

CORRECTIVE ACTION MONITORING PLAN )

The AK3I will verfy that TIGTA Ol management has been infrmed, via memorandum,
of the Importancea of currant information in the MIS database and that complaint files are
avallable for review.

IDENTITY OF RECOMMENATION #2

IRS CCPAG and TIGTA Office of Investigations management should devalop a process
to better contral § 1203 complaints. This process should include:

« Using a transmittal form to transfer complaints betwean the IRS and the TIGTA.

+ Acknowledging receipt [via transmittal form) of the carnplaint by the receiving office
{for complalnts transfemed betwsan the RS and the TIGTA}
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+ Foliowing up with the recaiving office if receipt of the complaint is not acknowled
{for complaints ransfemed betwean the IRS and the THETA} a ged

+ Follawing up with the recetving cifice o ensura the complaint
complaints transfemad within [R3), P v reoshed itor

+ Updating the complain atatus on all relevan computer databases when complalnts
am transtarmed or chosed. b

+ Explening the feasibiity of capturing & unique complaint number on IRS and TIGTA
databases.

ASSESSMENT OF CAUSE

Section 1203 complaint files ware nol alweys monttorsd to assure that the IRS had
recaived the complaints and the MIS had not besn updatad timealy ke reflect the mast
curmrent statuz of the complaints.

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

Currently, CMD |£ using the Document Tranamillal Farm 32440 o send complaints t the
IRS. Tha Special Agents In Charge (SAC's) may use the Form 3210 or may use the
2070 as thair receipt. Tha SAC's and CMD will ba advisad, via memorandum, of their
regponsiblities to verify recaipt of any 51203 complaints that are forwanded to IRS when
it appears the meaipt has nat returmed gignad by IRS. Adso, the SAC's and CMD will be
advisad of tha importance of cumant and accurate informatien inthe MIS.

The M1S is not set up 1o produce unique numbers for canain types of complaints. A
figkd within The complaint gereen |2 available ta speciflcally capiure an IRS complaini
runnbar if applicakhe.

IMPLEMENTATICHN DATE
Dgcamber 1, 2001

RESPONSIBLE CFFICIAL
Assistart Ihspector General far Investigations (AIGIH)

CORRECTIVE ACTION MONITORING PLAN

A memorandum will be issuad t0 the appropriate Investigsions personnal informing
them of the audit findings and their respansibilitias in tha referral, acknowledged receipt
by the IRS and final resodution of § 1203 complaints and also of having current and
accurata § 1203 Information in the MIS,
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IDENTITY OF RECOMMENDATION #2

TKSTA Office of Investifations management should develop a consistant mathod for
Kentifying the number of § 1203 aliagations recened for raporting in the TIGTA
Semiannual Repart o the Congrass.

ASSESSMENT OF CAUSE
Section 1203 violation codes wane removed sher the complaint had been entared intg
the MIS as a § 1203 complaint, per gevemring TIGTA guidslines.

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS '
Hetfficalion to Invesiigations parsonnel that once a § 1203 complaint is entered into the
MIS, 1he vinlation code will only be removad i manageman has dotermined thal the

£ 1203 violation code was placed in emor.

IMPLEMENTATION DATE
Cecember 1, 200M

RESPONSIBLE QFFICIAL
Assigtan] Inspecler General Tor Investigations (AlGl)

CORRECTNE ACTION MOMNITORING PLANM

AlGI will snsure that Investigations persannal are notified of their respansibiities for
accutata information in the MIS detabaze and thal § 12035 violation codes should ot be
removad unless a menager has delermingd it was placed in efmer.

IDENTITY OF RECOMMENDATION 74

TIGTA Offica of Investigations managemant should ensure that the genaral § 1203
information is varified before it ia Included in the TIGTA Semiannual Report to the
Congress,

ASSESSMENT OF CAUSE
Cifferent grileria ware used when extracting the numbsars for Lhe March 2000

Samisnnual Report to he Congress.

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS :

Since the putdication of the March 2000 Semiannual report, slandard crileria have been
developad to exract the § 1202 numbars. Independent neview of the Infermation will be
conducted prior ta the release of tha informaton.

IMPLEMENTATICH DATE
Septernber 21, 2001
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RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL o
Daputy 'napector General for Invasiijations

CORRECTIVE ACTION MONITORING PLAN _ )
AIGI will @nsura that the § 1203 information has baen reviewed paar 1a relpase in the

Semlannual Repott.

F RECOMMEMDATION #5
#ﬁﬂﬁoﬂﬁw of Investigatllons should consider raporting in the Semiannual Report
to the Congrass the number of employees wha refine or rasign in lieu of terminaticn
undar § 1203, the number of employees who are removed during their probationary
periad due to @ § 1203 viclallon, the number of amployees whose chame of § 1203
miscanduct {and subsegquent termination) is reversed through an appeal, ard Lha
number of § 1203 complaints received and mvestijated within tha IRS ihal do not
requirg TIGTA investigatan.

ABSESSMENT OF CAUSE
Not required to report this. lype information under RRA 98, § 1202,

CORRECTIVE ACTICNG )
Although 1he IRS & not required to repart this information to ue under RFA 98, § 1203,
we will consider vour recommendetions for future Sarlannual Reports.

MPLEMENTATION DATE
Decamber 1, 2001

RESPCNSIBLE OFFICIAL
Deputy Inspacior General far Invastigations

CORRECTIVE ACTION MOMNITORING PLAN
MiA
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